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One Gedney Court
Salem, Mass.

by Robert Booth, March 2019

According to available evidence, this house was built in 1886 for the heirs
of George S. Arrington, policeman; the first known tenant was John R.
Andrews, a mason, followed by barber Samuel Augustus Strout and family.

In the 1820s, George Scott Arrington (born 1804, son of Capt. James
Arrington, lost at sea 1812) was a mariner, sailing as a deckhand on board
the brig “Alfred” (1823, to Brazil), the brig “Ann” (to India, 1823), the brig
“Fawn” (1825, to Brazil), the brig “Lama” (to Marseilles, 1826), and the
brig “Malay” (1828, to markets in the Indian Ocean).

He married Jane Monies on Nov. 15, 1831, and they would have three
surviving children. He was a mariner as late as 1860 (per census). At that
time their offspring worked as a painter (George, 26), a shoe maker
(Deborah, 24), and a shoe binder (Ella (or Eliza), 19), per census, house
2395. In the 1860s he joined the police force and was a city watchman, and
resided with his family at then-10 High Street.

In August, 1869, Deborah R. Arrington sold to George S. Arrington of High
Street, a lot of land bounded west on Gedney Court, north on land of James
Arrington, east on land of Lawrence heirs, and south on land of James
Arrington and of the grantee G. S. Arrington (ED 780:269). Evidently Mr.
Arrington kept this lot open for many years; he may have used it for
growing vegetables.

His wife Jane died on Sept. 2, 1877; and he died on August 29, 1880,
leaving a son, George S. Jr., a house painter, two daughters, Lydia/Deborah
and Eliza (Mrs. Charles Williams), and a grandson, George S. Williams.

In 1886 the George S. Arrington estate was taxed for two houses & their lots
on High Street, and a lot of land (5400 sq.ft.) on Gedney Court worth $400
(per “taxes” valuation book of Salem). By May 1,-1887, a house stood on
that land, and the estate was taxed for “house, 21 Gedney Court,” valued at
$1600, on the 5400 sq.-ft. lot, which was separately valued at $600.

The G. S. Arrington heirs continued to reside at then-10 High Street; the
new house (now #1, then #21) was leased out. It should be noted that, at that
time, Gedney Court (Street) was a narrow roadway that began at Summer



Street and ran to a dogleg connecting with High Street. Nearly the entire
street and its buildings were removed in the 1930s, in connection with the
construction of the U.S. Post Office. On a new course, the city laid out a
street from Summer Street to the roadway running past the front of the Post
Office. The new street was at first called Broad Street Extension, then was
renamed Gedney Street. The only survivors of the old original Gedney
Court are this house, the house opposite, and the stretch of road here (see
appended atlas and other views).

In the decade preceding the construction of this house, Salem received its
last cargo from Zanzibar (in 1870), signaling the end of its once-enormous
trade with Africa. By then, a new Salem & New York freight steamboat line
was in operation. Seven years later, with the arrival of a vessel from
Cayenne, Salem’s foreign trade came to an end. After that, “the merchandise
warehouses on the wharves no longer contained silks from India, tea from
China, pepper from Sumatra, coffee from Arabia, spices from Batavia, gum-
copal from Zanzibar, hides from Africa, and the various other products of
far-away countries. The boys have ceased to watch on the Neck for the
incoming vessels, hoping to earn a reward by being the first to announce to
the expectant merchant the safe return of his looked-for vessel. The foreign
commerce of Salem, once her pride and glory, has spread its white wings
and sailed away forever” (Rev. George Bachelder in History of Essex
County, I1: 65).

Salem was now so densely built-up that a general conflagration was always
a possibility, as in Boston, when, on Nov. 9, 1872, the financial and
manufacturing district of that city burned up. Salem continued to prosper in
the 1870s, carried forward by the leather-making business and cotton
sheeting produced in huge factories at The Point. In 1874 the city was
visited by a tornado and shaken by a minor earthquake. In the following
year, the large Pennsylvania Pier (site of the present coal-fired harborside
electrical generating plant) was completed to begin receiving large
shipments of coal. Beyond it, at Juniper Point, a new owner began
subdividing the old Allen farmlands into a new development called Salem
Willows and Juniper Point. In the U.S. centennial year, 1876, Alexander
Graham Bell of Salem announced that he had discovered a way to transmit
voices over telegraph wires.

French-speaking Canadian families immigrated to Salem to work in its
factories, with an increase in tenement housing. The better-off industrial
workers bought portions of older houses or built small homes for their
families in the outlying sections of the city; and by 1879 the Naumkeag
Steam Cotton mills at The Point would employ 1200 people and produce
annually nearly 15 million yards of cloth. Shoe-manufacturing businesses
expanded in the 1870s, and 40 shoe factories were employing 600-plus
operatives. Tanning, in both Salem and Peabody, remained a very important
industry, and employed hundreds of breadwinners. On Boston Street in
1879, the Arnold tannery caught fire and burned down.



In the 1880s and 1890s, Salem kept building infrastructure; and new
businesses arose, and established businesses expanded. Retail stores
prospered; horse-drawn trolleys ran every which-way; and machinists,
carpenters, millwrights, and other specialists all thrived. In 1880, Salem’s
manufactured goods were valued at about $8.4 million, of which leather
accounted for nearly half. In the summer of 1886, the Knights of Labor
brought a strike against the manufacturers for a ten-hour day and other
concessions; but the manufacturers imported labor from Maine and Canada,
and kept going. The strikers held out, and there was violence in the streets,
and even rioting; but the owners prevailed, and many of the defeated
workers lost their jobs and suffered, with their families, through a bitter
winter.

By the mid-1880s, Salem’s cotton-cloth mills at The Point employed 1400
people who produced 19 million yards annually, worth about $1.5 million.
The city’s large shoe factories stood downtown behind the stone depot and
on Dodge and Lafayette Streets, as well as the vicinity of St. Ann’s church
off Jefferson Avenue. A jute bagging company prospered with plants on
Skerry Street and English Street; its products were sent south to be used in
cotton-baling. Salem factories also produced lead, paint, and oil. At the
Eastern Railroad yard on Bridge Street, cars were repaired and built new. In
1887 the streets were first lit with electricity, replacing gas-light. The gas
works, which had stood on Northey Street starting in 1850, were moved to a
larger site on Bridge Street in 1888, opposite the Beverly Shore.

More factories and more people required more space for buildings, more
roads, and more storage areas. This space was created by filling in rivers,
harbors, and ponds. The once-broad North River was filled from both
shores, and became a canal along Bridge Street above the North Bridge. The
large and beautiful Mill Pond, which occupied the whole area between the
present Jefferson Avenue, Canal Street, and Loring Avenue, finally
vanished beneath streets, storage areas, junk-yards, rail-yards, and parking
lots. The South River, too, with its midpoint at Central Street (that’s why a
Custom House was built there in 1805) disappeared under pavement, and
some of its old wharves were combined with much in-fill and turned into
coal-yards and lumber-yards. Only a canal was left, running in from Derby
and Central Wharves to Lafayette Street.

This was the Salem in which this house was built. The first known tenant
here was John R. Andrews (per the Salem valuation book, which has no
listing for a 21 Gedney Ct. in the spring of 1887—not yet built—but in 1888
the valuation book (p. 2, ward 3) lists a 21 Gedney Ct. with John R.
Andrews living there. Per the 1888 Salem Directory, John R. Andrews
worked as a mason and resided at 10 Northey St (in 1884 he was a mason
residing at then-48 Charter Street and in 1886 he was listed as a masen
residing at 12 Harbor Street). The 1890-1 Directory lists him as “rémoved to
Malden”. By 1894 (per directories) he was in Reading, whence he removed



to Westmoreland, NH, in 1896; and in 1905 he may have been the one

(working as a mason, as in these other listings) at Leominster, living on
Willard Street.

After Mr. Andrews moved out in 1888, he was succeeded here, evidently
(per 1890-91 Naumkeag Directory) by Samuel A. Strout, a
barber/hairdresser (1858-1927), born on April 28, 1858. Samuel Augustus
Strout’s parents were Samuel Strout (1827-1886) and Hannah D. (Remon)
Strout, of Salem. Hannah was the daughter of Mrs. Eliza Remon and
Charles Remon, a Prussian who had come to Salem before 1830 and had
been for many years a seaman in the town’s merchant marine. The Remons
resided in the old neighborhood hereabouts. Hannah (Remon) Strout had
several sibings, the aunts and uncles of Samuel A. Strout.

Samuel A.’s father Samuel Strout, a native of Antwerp, Belgium, had come
to Salem by 1853, where he (“Samuel Stroat”) worked as a mariner. He and
Hannah were wed in that year, and in 1855 resided in a three-family house
(per census, house 556) at then-8 Creek Street. They had a son George, one
(he was evidently given the last name Douglass when young, but continued
to be raised by his parents). They moved to 5 Gedney Court in 1858, and by
1863 they were in then-4 Endicott Street in the nearby “Broadfields”
neighborhood.

The Civil War began in April, 1861, and hundreds of men from Salem
enlisted. Samuel Strout, a family man, was able to stay at home and support
his family. Then, in November, 1864, when Samuel A. was seven, his father
went to Kittery, Maine, to enlist in the Navy at age 37. He was evidently
paid to take the place of Isaac Varrell of Tremont, Maine. Samuel was noted
in the records as standing 5° 4” tall, with gray eyes and a fair complexion,
and having a tattoo of a woman on his left forearm, and a star on his hand.
During the war he suffered a terrible injury which required amputation of
his left leg. This ended his career as a mariner.

Post-war, he found work on the wharves as a stevedore, and by 1865 the
family moved to a house near Tucker’s Wharf, on lower Derby Street near
Becket. Times were tough for the Strouts, who moved in with Hannah’s
sister, Elizabeth, whose husband was George W. Douglass, a mariner, with
whom she was raising a daughter. Samuel A., 7, had a brother George, ten,
and a brother Charles C.3; and the household included Hannah’s mother,
Elizabeth C. Remon (“Raymond” sic), and another of Hannah’s sisters,
Louisa M. Remon, 28 (1865 census, house 148). They were still there in
1870; by then the Strouts were raising George Douglass Jr., 16, who worked
on the wharves, and the Strout children were Samuel A, 12, Charles C., 8,
Frank and Henry M, both 4, and Hannah W., one (another daughter, Sarah
A, would be born in 1877); Mrs. Elizabeth Remon, 73, lived with them in
her widowhood and worked as a nurse (see 1870 census, house 36).



As a boy, Samuel A. worked as a newspaper carrier for the old Salem
Register. He attended the Phillips public grammar school, and early learned
the barber’s trade from Henry Gardner, for whom he would work for many
years. He joined the Oriental Lodge of the A.0.U.W. By 1880, Samuel
Augustus, barber, and the Strout family moved back to the old Creek Street
neighborhood (per 1880 census).

When he was 25, hairdresser Samuel A. Strout married, on Aug. 30, 1883,
Carrie Titcomb, 20, then of Peabody. The ceremony was performed by
Fielder Israel, pastor of the First (North) Church, Unitarian. Carrie was born
in Melrose, daughter of John & Mary A. (Mace) Titcomb. At the time of his
marriage, Augustus Strout (as he was known) boarded in the family home at
then-14 Creek Street (in the 1930s the street would be torn up and its houses
demolished when the Post Office was built; the street had bordered a creek
running down into the inner harbor).

Carrie’s first child, a boy, born July 11, 1884, was stillborn. She would have
surviving children Carrie F. (born 14 June 1886) and Charles T. (born Jan.
16, 1889). Samuel A.’s father, Samuel Strout, 59, immigrant, mariner,
wounded combat veteran, and dockworker, died on Sept. 28, 1886, of
consumption; he had become a janitor but was remembered in the
newspaper for his seafaring career and his war service.

Samuel A. Strout barbered at then-213 Essex Street in 1886, and he and
Carried resided at then-13 Gedney Court and into 1888 (per valuation
books) and perhaps 1889. Then they occupied this new house (now #1) at
then-21 Gedney Court (per valuation book).

The Strouts moved on (to 25 Essex Street) by 1893,and a new tenant moved
in at #1 (then #21). Subsequently, Samuel A. would end his work with
Henry Gardner and barber in the shop of William F. Daniels, after whose
death he continued the business as proprietor.

Tragically, Carrie (Titcomb) Strout was afflicted with severe gastritis in
February, 1898: she died on February 20, aged 34 years, leaving two young
children and her husband.

Samuel Augustus Strout (1858-1927), born 28 April 1858, son of Samuel
Strout & Hannah Remon, died 14 Nov. 1927. He m. 30 Aug. 1883 Caroline
A. Titcomb (1863-1898), dltr. of John Titcomb & Mary Mace of Melrose,
died 21 Feb.1898. Known issue:

1. son, born & died 11 July 1884.

2. Carrie F., 14 June 1886, m. Otto P. C. Schlichting, of Boston and

Belmont.
3. Charles T., 1889, m. Jennie Marshall; of Ipswich.



In 1900 the Strouts resided at then-26 Hathorne Street: Samuel A., widower
and barber, was raising his children Carrie, 13, and Charles, ten. After some
years, S. Augustus Strout closed the shop and worked for Horace Snow and
other barbers. His daughter Carrie married and lived in Boston; his son,
probably born in this house in 1889, married and moved to Ipswich, whence
he enlisted in the 151 Regiment in World War One. He was known as a
fine singer.

On Nov. 14, 1927, Samuel Augustus Strout, in his 70" year, died of
myocarditis while residing with a cousin at 6 Buffum Street. He had never
remarried after the death of Carrie in 1898. In his obituary he was
remembered as “skillful, and he counted among his customers many of the
most prominent officials in state and city.” (per SAS obit, 15 Nov. 1927
SEN).

By 1893 the house (then #21, now #1) was occupied by Anthony A. Perry, a
carpenter, and whatever family he may have had (per Directory).

By 1897 the house was occupied as a two-family by Philip Gendron,
laundryman, and family (including son Arthur, a clerk working at then-188
Essex Street) and by Liboire Tremblay, wife Hermine, and six children. He
was born in Quebec, and was the son of Godfroy Tremblay and Elizabeth
Gagnon. Next door (#19), formerly occupied by the Teagues, Mr. C.
Bogosian moved in. This shows a shift to Armenians and French-speaking
Canadians in this neighborhood.

The Tremblays continued to live here. Liboire contracted meningitis and
was sick for a long time. He died at home on June 19, 1898. After a well-
attended funeral at St. Joseph’s Church, his remains were interred at St.
Mary’s cemetery on North Street. Liboire left his wife and children.

Per the 1900 census, the house was crowded: here lived the Tremblays
(Hermine, 55, Cecilia, 27, a shoe-buttoner in a factory; Emma, 23, a cotton
spinner in a factory, Peter, 17, a shoe worker, Mary Louisa, 16, at school,
and Joseph, thirteen); a boarder, Hemelin Levesque, 9, a leather worker in a
morocco shop; and the Philippe Gendrons (Philip, 40, working in a laundry,
Mary, 41, their children Celia, 20, a shoe finisher, Arthur, 18, a machinist,
and Dorelis, 8, along with Mary’s brother, Theodore Beauregard, 26, a
heeler in a shoe factory.

In 1906 #21 was still occupied by Mrs. Hermine Tremblay, widow, and
daughter Mary L. and others; also by Adolphe Boucher, a concreter, and
family (per 1906 Directory).



In May, 1906, the G. S. Arrington Sr. heirs sold real estate including this
house and land, to Mario Fossa of Salem (ED 1820:189). The frontage on
Gedney Court was 39.9°.

George S. Arrington (Jr.) died on July 8, 1908, in his 75" year, leaving his
sisters as his heirs. In that year,1908, the tenants here were Joseph Areno
and L. Femino and their families (per Directory, #21). Next door (#19) was

Giuseppe Giunta, laborer, i famiglia, and other Italian families at #13 and
#17.

In 1910 the tenants here (per Directory) were families headed by laborers
Cosimo Bisazza (name inverted in Directory listing), and C. Salucchia. Out
back was another building, identified as #21r., occupied by Sebastiano
Bucchieri, a barber with a shop at 16 High. The 1910 census shows the
house occupied by Paolo Angelico, 30, a brick laborer, wife Carmela, 26,
and daughters Angelica S., 7, Angelica Sabrati, 4; also, Cosimo Bisazza, 32,
a brickmaker, wife Maria, 23, son Dominico, 2, and baby girl Ningiorli, also
lodgers Antonio, 22, and Michele, 20, bricklayers.

By 1912 (per Directory), the occupants were Cosimo Bisazza, laborer, and
family (30 years later Mr. Bisazza was still in Salem, residing at 77 Summer
Street, employed by the WPA). The owner, Mario Fossa, resided at 20 High
Street and had a grocery store at 18 High (per Directory). He was 26, and a
widower (in 1910 anyway) with four young children, Arthur, Joseph,
Virginia, and Theresa. His wife’s maiden name was Cavagnoro. He died in
1918.

Salem kept growing. The Canadians were followed in the early 20™ century
by large numbers of Polish and Ukrainian families, who settled primarily in
the Derby Street neighborhood. By the eve of World War One, Salem was a
bustling, polyglot city that supported large department stores and large
factories of every description. People from the surrounding towns, and
Marblehead in particular, came to Salem to do their shopping; and its
handsome government buildings, as befit the county seat, were busy with
conveyances of land, lawsuits, and probate proceedings. The city’s politics
were lively, and its economy was strong.

On June 25, 1914, in the morning, in Blubber Hollow (Boston Street
opposite Federal), a fire started in one of Salem’s fire-prone wooden
tanneries. This fire soon consumed the building and raced out of control, for
the west wind was high and the season had been dry. The next building
caught fire, and the next, and out of Blubber Hollow the fire roared easterly,
a monstrous front of flame and smoke, wiping out the houses of Boston
Street, Essex Street, and upper Broad Street, and then sweeping through
Hathorne, Winthrop, Endicott, and other residential streets. Men and
machines could not stop it: the enormous fire crossed over into South Salem
and destroyed the neighborhoods west of Lafayette Street, then devoured the
mansions of Lafayette Street itself, and raged onward into the tenement



district. Despite the combined efforts of heroic fire crews from many towns
and cities, the fire overwhelmed everything in its path: it smashed into the
large factory buildings of the Naumkeag Steam Cotton Company (Congress
Street), which exploded in an inferno; and it rolled down Lafayette Street
and across the water to Derby Street. There, just beyond Union Street, after
a 13-hour rampage, the monster died, having consumed 250 acres, 1600
houses, and 41 factories, and leaving three dead and thousands homeless.
Some people had insurance, some did not; all received much support and
generous donations from all over the country and the world. It was one of
the greatest urban disasters in the history of the United States, and the
people of Salem would take years to recover from it. Eventually, they did,
and many of the former houses and businesses were rebuilt; and several
urban-renewal projects (including Hawthorne Boulevard, which involved
removing old houses and widening old streets) were put into effect.

The 1920 census shows the residents here as Lawrence Maraffa, 35, a
mason tender, wife Margaret, 25, offspring John, 3, and Tony, one, and
boarder Frank Jordina, 45, mason tender; also, Jimmy Femino, 45, a laborer
in a machine shop, wife Domenica, 45, son Jimmie, 18, electrical worker,
daughters Mary, 16, stitcher in a shoe factory, Jennie, 13, sons Steve, 12,
and Joe, 11, daughter Grace, 8, and son Juncido, two.

In October, 1920, real estate including this house and land was sold to G.
Frank Fossa, of New Hampshire; and in December, 1920, he sold the same
to Antonio Calabrese and Girolamo Grasso (ED 2471:522,523).

In May, 1924, Messrs. Calabrese and Grasso sold the premises to Giacomo
(“James”) Femino of Salem (ED 2598:74). The Feminos already resided
here, with tenants. James was a native of Italy, born in 1875, son of
Giacomo Femino and Maria Celona. James emigrated to Salem at about the
age of thirty, and found work as a mason’s assistant, or hod carrier—a
common occupation among Salem’s Italian immigrant community.

By the 1920s, Salem was once again a thriving city; and its tercentenary in
1926 was a time of great celebration. The Depression hit in 1929, and
continued through the 1930s. .

In the 1930 census this house was occupied by two families, those of James
Femino, 55, a mason tender, wife Domenica (Margaret), 55, and offspring
Stephen, 22, a stripper in a leather shop, and 12-year-old Ida; also Crochie
Shucco, 19, a truck driver, and wife Mary, 19.

The Feminos were members of St. Mary’s Church and were active in the
Italian-American neighborhood, with many friends and relatives. Most of
the local Italians had arrived from Sicily in 1904 and after. He was active in
the Italian-American Educational Club and a member of local 14 of the Hod
Carriers, Building, & Common Laborers’ Union.



James Femino, 64, died at Salem Hospital on June 30, 1939, of heart disease
and a cerebral hemorrhage. His funeral was held from his home, with Rev.
Peter Piemonte officiating, and floral offerings from his union, club, and
some businesses, including the plate-toggle department of A. C. Lawrence
tanning company. His remains were interred at St. Mary’s cemetery (per
obituary).

The 1940 census (house 75 in the enumerated district) list this house as the
residence of Margaret Femino, a widow, 65, and Arthur Femino, 22,
working as a newspaper boy; also, John Migliaccio, 54, a WPA laborer,
wife Anna, 53, and daughters Agia, 15, and Alba, 13.

James (aka Giacomo) Femino’s heirs, in July, 1943, granted to his widow,
Domenica Femino of Salem, the buildings and land (Lot #2, 1660 sq. ft.)
running northerly on Gedney Court 38’ and otherwise bounded on Lot #1
and Lot #3 (ED 3354:131).

After Mrs. Domenica Femino’s death in 1945, her heirs, in February, 1946,
sold the premises to James Femino of Salem (ED 3468:344).

Salem, the county seat and regional retail center, gradually rebounded, and
prospered after World War II through the 1950s and into the 1960s. General
Electric, Sylvania, Parker Brothers, Pequot Mills (formerly Naumkeag
Steam Cotton Co.), Almy’s department store, various other large-scale
retailers, and Beverly’s United Shoe Machinery Company were all major
local employers.

The recent history of ownership runs as follows: Brauer to Desimone, 1999;
Desimone to Hogan, 2000; Brian Hogan to self and Jessica Anderson, 2001;
Brian and Jessica to Jennifer Anderson, 2002; Jennifer to the Belmores,
2004; and Belmores to Joseph P. Ruggiero, 2018.



Glossary & Sources

A figure like (ED 123:45) refers to book 123, page 45, Essex South registry of
Deeds, Federal Street, Salem.

A figure like (#12345) refers to Essex Probate case 12345, on file at the Essex
Probate Court, Federal Street, Salem, or on microfilm at Mass. Archives,
Boston, or at the Peabody Essex Museum’s Phillips Library, Salem.

MSSRW refers to the multi-volume compendium, Mass. Soldiers & Sailors in
the Revolutionary War, available at the Salem Public Library among other
places.

MSSCRW refers to the multi-volume compendium, Mass. Soldiers, Sailors, &
Marines in the Civil War, available at the Salem Public Library among other
places.

EIHC refers to the Essex Institute Historical Collections (discontinued), a
multi-volume set (first volume published in 1859) of data and articles about
Essex County. The indices of the ETHC have been consulted regarding many
of the people associated with this house.

The six-volume published Salem Vital records (marriages, births, and deaths
through 1849) have been consulted, as have the Salem Directory and later
Naumkeag Directory, which have information about residents and their
addresses, etc.

Sidney Perley’s three-volume History of Salem, 1626-1716 has been
consulted, as has the four-volume William Bentley’s Diary, J. Duncan
Phillips’ books, some newspaper obituaries, and other sources.

Salem real estate valuations, and, where applicable, Salem Street Books, have
also been consulted, as have genealogies.

There is much more material available about Salem and its history; and the
reader is encouraged to make his or her own discoveries.

--Robert Booth
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Femino et al
to
Femino

Essex ss. Received July §, 1946, 54 n, past 3 P.}. Reeorded and Examined.

Quitelaim Deed We, Joseph Femino and Arthur Femino, being unmarried,and
Stephen Femino all of Salem, in the County of Essex, and Grace G. Lessard,
fornezly Grace G. Femino, now of Sasta Barbara in the State of Californial
for consideration paid, grant to James Femino of said Salem, with QUITCLAiH
COVENANTS the land in said SALEY with the buildings thereon bounded and d«'a-
seribed as follows: Parcel 1. Beginning at a point og Gedaey Court at thi
Nortwesterly corner of Lot #1 on plan hereinafter referred to and running
Northerly, slightly Rasterly by Gedney Court about thirty-eight (38) feet
to land now or formerly of Arrington; thence running Easterly, bounded
‘Northerly by land now or formerly of Arrington forty-four and thirty one-
hundredths (44.30) feet to Lot #3 on said plan; thence running Southerly,
bounded Easterly by Lot #3 on said plan about twenty-three and fifty one-
hundredths (23.50) feet to a point seven and fifty-four one=hundredths
(7.54) feet Easterly from the Southeasterly corner of a dwelling house on
said Lot #2; thence running Southwesterly, hounded Southeasterly by Lot 3
Tourteen and forty one one-hundredths {14.41) feet to the Northeasterly
corner of Lot #1; thence running Westerly on a line parallel to and six
(6) feet Northerly from the Northerly side of the store on Lot #, forty-
one and twenby-six (41.26) feet to Gedney Court and ‘the poiat of beginning.
Containing one thousand six hundred aixty (1660) square feet. Being shown
'as Lot #2 on & plan of land of Antonio Calabrese et al by Thomas A. Apple-
ton, C.E. dated April, 1924, recorded with Essex South District Registry
of Deeds. Parcel 2. Beginning at a point marked "A" on a plan entitled
"Land of the City of Salem, Gedney Court and Broad Street Extension, Salem,
Masseckusetts, Scale one (1) inch = twenty (20) feet, August, 1931, Frank
P. Morse, Gify' Engineer," recorded with Essex South District Registry of
‘Deeds, thence rumning Soﬁtheasterly by land of the City of Salem, forty=
four and thirty ome-hundredths (44.30) feet to a point marked "B" on said
‘plan; thence turning and running southwesterly by land of the City of
'Galem, three and six tenths (3.6) feet to a point marked 'fC" on said pJ.c:n;l
thence turning and ruaning northwesterly by land of Femino, forty-four and
thirty one-hundredths (44.30) feet to a point marked "D" on said plan;thezlce
turning aad running northeasterly on the easterly line of Gedney COurt,fotg
and four tenths (4.4) feet to said point marked "A" and point begun at. |

Said parcel contains one hundred and seventy-sevén.(l’l'l) squere feet of
land. Being the premises conveyed to Domenica Femigo by deed of Joseph
iFemino et als. dated May 4, 1943, and recorded with Essex South District

Registry of Deeds in Book 3354, Page 131. For title see Estate of Domenicla
’ &




|

Femino, which is probated in Essex County Probate Court. The said coavey=
ance is made subject to a first mortgage held by Salem Five Cents SGVinss‘
Bank, and subject Yo all unpaid taxes and other municipal liens. I, Cath
rine A. Femino, wife of said grantor, Stephen Femino, release to said yaL-
tee all rights of dower and homestead and other interests therein, I,
Joseph C. E. Lessard, husband of said grantor, Grace - Lessard, release
to said grantee all rights of tenancy by the curtesy, and other interests
therein. WITNESS our hands and seals this Twenty-third day of February,19|45.
Catherine A, Femino
Arthur Femino
Stephen Femino
Grace G. Lessard
Lillie Brinkmann Joseph C. E. lessard
Ivalyn Beverly Joseph Fenmino
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS Essex, ss. Salem, February 23, 1946 Then
personally appeared the above named Arthur Femino and Stephen Femino and
acknowledged the foregoing instrument to be their free act and deed.
Before me, Harry A. Simon Notary Public

Yy commission expires: July 30, 1948 4
Essex ss. Received July 5, 1946, 55 m. past 3 P,¥, Recorded and Examined.

In the preseace of :
Helen R. Jacobson
Helen Jacobson
Florence Paul
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cousin, Mrs. Watson ot Salem

EDERlCl\ 0. WOODRUFF

lck‘n W ruff, a-real estale

Xn,

; IO&)-“‘.

TO LET—4 room lenemcnt bath, gas,
eteﬁgﬁricip*-*on Meral st anuite SGBpL

T 65 W-—or - SpPIY

LEI‘-—Tenemem. of 5 rooms “and

“¥easo
16t
TO

‘Holly.stio. .

st. Tel. Salem 1359-

TO LET—In Dnnvers -niear. the square,
IQwer t, improve rent rea-
sonable. Apply 18 Commt. st.,
Tel._433-R.

'O LET—Lower flat of & clean sunny
ranms at 15 Collins st.. Lynn, partly:mod-

Call or write i
Essex_st

‘bréker of ‘Boston, died in the ~Pal-
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198 MILITARY RECORDS

Cuarres Trrcoms Strout, born January 16, 1889, at
Salem. Son of Samuel A. and Carrie Titcomb Strout.
Married Miss Jennie Marshall. Enlisted at Roxbury,
April 26, 1918, 26th Co., 151st Regiment, Depot Brigade,
Camp Devens. Discharged Dec. 5, 1918.

Murray Danier SureerTe, born June 19, 1888, at
Nova Scotia. Son of Joseph and Mary Surrette. Mus-
tered in August 5, 1918, and assigned to New Haven,
Conn. Engaged in reconstructing wounded soldiers,
teaching landscape gardening, in preparation for voca-
tional training. Discharged August 18, 1919,

JosEPH ALLEN SURRETTE, born August 11, 1891. Son
of John D. and Madeline Surrette. Enlisted April 10,
1917, 2nd Mass. Field Artillery. Mustered into Federal
service July 25, Battery A, 102nd U. S. Field Artillery,
at Camp Curtis Guild, Boxford.

Sailed September 22, in company with James J. Ryan,
in the Finland, and after three weeks in rest camp, pro-
ceeded to the French Artillery Training Camp at Coetqui-
dan. Remained there until January 28, using French
75 mm, guns, horse drawn, eight men to a gun.

Their first front was at Soissons, just evacuated by the
Germans, where they were camped in the Cathedral, on
Feb. 4, 1918, and next day moved to Bussey de Long, and
placed their guns in position, seven kilometres from the
front. Continued there 45 days, firing frequently ; under
the enemy’s fire most of the time, but losing only one man
wounded ; and then withdrawn to the Toul sector, spend-
ing four days in box cars and fourteen on the road. Went
into action in April, relieving the 6th Field Artillery, at
Seicheprey, and at Fleuri April 20 to 24. Two men were
killed on the 22nd, and two others, runners to the front,
were captured. From Seicheprey removed to Remaucourt,
in same sector.

Mr. Surrette was wounded in action on May 30, receiv-
ing a shell wound in the left thigh, and was removed to
Evacuation Hospital No. 1, at Toul, and nine days later
to Base Hospital 15, at Chaumont. He returned to the
ranks July 8, in Battery C, 27th Division, was in action
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